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SEPTEMBER, 1924

Convocation to Honor Decade

CoMmMEMORATION oF THE RoeEMERS' First TEN YEARS AT LINDENWOOD

Y order of the Board of Directors,

alumnae and friends will join with
the students and faculty of Lindenwood,
in celebrating “Roemer Day,” Monday,
September 20, just after school opens.
This is to be a formal recognition of the
tenth anniversary of President and Mrs.
Roemer in their service for “the Newer
Lindenwood."

To be exact, the tenth anniversary oc-
curred May 12, 1924, but everyone
knows that all the limelight of that sea-
son was needed to shine upon May
Queens and honor graduates and com-
mencement speakers. ‘Therefore the
Board asked rather that the first Convo-
cation of the school yvear, a time of plas-
ticity and open-mindedness (when no-
body is worrying about “exams’™) be de-
voted to this observance. A suitable pro-
gram will be presented, in charge of the
Vice-President of the Board, the Rev.
David M. Skilling, D. D., pastor of the
Webster Groves Presbyterian Church.

BIOGRAPHY OF DR. ROEMER

John L. Roemer, the subject of this
sketch, claims nativity in the same State
as the present Democratic candidate for
President, John W. Davis, He was a son
of the late John Roemer, a dry goods
merchant of Wheeling, W. Va. Mrs.

Roemer, his mother, had been Miss
Sarah Donel of Ohio. There were eleven
children in the Roemer family, of whom
Lindenwood's future president was the
seventh.

After attending the public schools of
Wheeling, from which he graduated, he
became a student at Linsley Institute in
Wheeling, and then went on to the Uni-
versity of West Virginia, graduating
with the degree A. B. His training for
the ministry was at the Western Theo-
logical Seminary, at Alleghany, Pa., of
which he is an alumnus.

HIS MARRIAGE

Before going to his first pastorate,
which was at Tairview Presbyterian
Church, Washington County, I’a., he
married Miss Lillie Pickenpaugh of
Morgantown, W. Va., daughter of a mer-
chant of that city.

The South Presbyterian Church of
Cleveland, Ohio, extended him a call, and
for eight years he was minister to that
congregation.

He was next pastor of the First Pres-
byterian Church of Chillicothe, Ohio, in
a community widely known for its wealth
and culture. More authors to the square
inch, it is said, have come out of Chilli-
cothe than from any other city of its
size in the United States. Here among
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Presbyterians were the Woodrows, rela-
tives of President Wilson, on the distaff
side.

Since Presidents are being mentioned,
it is an interesting fact concerning the
late President Harding that Dr. Roemer
gave him his first ecclesiastical lift, as it
were, into higher things in politics, for it
was the Chillicothe pastor ( Dr. Roemer),
who offered the opening prayer at the
first political meeting when Warren
Gamaliel Harding aspired to the people’s
favor: Mr. Harding was then candidate
for the Lieutenant-Governorship of Ohio.

CALLED TO ST. LOUIS

Tyler Place Presbyterian Church of
St. Louis, which was a small, struggling,
new congregation in a new community,
had several energetic and ambitious men
among its elders. They had heard of Dr,
Roemer's preaching and administrative
powers, and they determined to pry him
out of his pleasant surroundings and
bring him to this pioneer post, of which
they had fine hopes in prospect. The
Chillicothe Presbytery said “No." They
were determined to retain their First
Church pastor. The St. Louis Tyler
Place elders went on to Chillicothe and
made a special plea. It was only then
that he was released.

Under Dr. Roemer's pastoral care for
the next nine years, T'yler Place Church
grew from small membership to be one
of the largest Presbyterian churches in
the city. A Sunday-School building was
added, a new pipe-organ installed, and
the church’s benevolences balanced well
its greatly increased home budget.

LARGER GIFTS FOR
LINDENWOOD

There was a stirring in the tree-tops.
It was “the year the war began.” People
were to begin giving with a generosity
which had never been known before. Col.

James Gay Butler had a prescience of
this coming change, and it was one of
the good things ordained for Lindenwood
that just at this hour the college needed a
new president.

Rev. George Frederick Ayers, D. )6
Dr. Roemer's predecessor and intimate
friend, had died at Lindenwood in Octo-
ber, 1913. Col. Butler, who had long
heen a member of the Board of Direc-
tors, selected Dr. Roemer as his choice
for Lindenwood’s new president, and he
promised that Lindenwood should profit
financially if Dr. Roemer would assume
its leadership. This suggestion was
warmly seconded by the late Dr. S. J.
Niccolls, of the Second Preshyterian
Church, Col. Butler's pastor, and long-
time president of Lindenwood’s Board.

Col. Butler's slogan, “the useful life,”
has long since become inwrought in the
sayings of Lindenwood. He regarded
himself as an “investor” when he gave
his benefactions. He said he had decided
to “translate his money into life.” He
was a capitalist with millions, but he
didn’t desire to die rich, with nothing
else to his credit. He founded the In-
dustrial Loan Company in St. Louis, one
of the very great charities which help
people out of their debts and help them
to help themselves. His giving of mil-
lions to Lindenwood was not simply a
climactic act, for the sake of a “thrill.”
It was exactly in line with his steady
pursuance of a principle of sharing. He
gave allotted portions of his income reg-
ularly, in generous measure, 10 many
charities, and to education. But in Lin-
denwood he saw an opportunity for the
use of large funds, with good returns in
character. That was why he “got back
of it,” as he said. Almost anyone, he
thought, could make money, but it took
a wise man to administer it.
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So on May 12, 1914, Dr. and Mrs.
Roemer came to Lindenwood to live,
making their first home in Jubilee Hall,
which was then a new building.

“INVESTING IN CHARACTER”

Butler Hall, the dormitory just north
of Jubilee, started in 1914 and dedicated
in the spring of 1915, was an earnest of
Col. Butler's intention to have “a larger
Lindenwood.” This building caused
much excitement among the students. It
contained a Natatorium. Everybody was
to learn to swim, which they did, and are
still doing today. Col. Butler and his
wife, the late Mrs. Margaret Leggat But-
ler, are kept in the memory of all by
life-size portraits hung in the parlors of
Butler Hall. Mrs. Butler, even after her
husband’s death and up to her own, had
a personal affection for the girls of Lin-
denwood. She was fond of music, and
girls from Margaret Hall (the music
studio building named for Mrs. Butler)
went often to her sick-room to sing to
her and console her in her painful ill-
ness.

Butler Hall is now occupied entirely
by seniors, who feel honored to call this
historic structure their home,

Then came a still larger building—
Niccolls Hall—the dormitory to the ex-
treme southwest, which Col. Butler
named for his pastor. Dr. Niccolls had
died in 1915, and the new hall was
started the next year. It carried out Col.
Butler’s plans, but he himself passed
away (1916) before Niccolls Hall was
dedicated, February 17, 191%.

“ROEMER HALL"

Still planning up to his death, Col.
Butler had designed to build a very large
building for administrative purposes. His
legacies provided the funds, and the
building was started in 1920. It is known
that “Roemer Hall” is the name which

Col. Butler would have favored, but the
direct cause of its being so named was
the unanimous petition of the student
body. Herein one is reminded of the
story which comes down from the state-
ly reredos, with its statues of saints,
which stands, carved in exquisite Caen
stone, in Christ Church Cathedral, St.
Louis, high and wide above the altar.
Harry Hems, the sculptor, of Exeter,
England, had wrought the many statutes
and their setting, from Patriarchs and
Apostles on down to Bishop Kemper and
others of early America. He had made,
too, a statue of Bishop Tuttle, then in
his prime. This statue, Harry Hems said,
should be put in the crypt until the good
Bishop died, and then it should have a
place in the reredos.

But the people of Missouri said, “No.
We won't have our Bishop's statue hid
away in the cellar, We want it to be
seen.,” Harry Hems' protests were swept
away, and the Bishop's statue at once had
its place, to be maintained for many a
vear, while the Bishop continued to live.
At Lindenwood there was no Britisher
to declare, “It isn't done,” and so the
students had their wish, and the building
was named, with approval of the Board,
for the living President.

Roemer Hall was built at a cost of
$500,000. It was dedicated October 20,
1921. Dr. Henry Noble MacCracken,
president of Vassar College, made the
dedicatory address. It is a four-story
building, north of all the others. The
first floor is given over to administrative
offices, including the library and an audi-
torium with a seating capacity of about
700. Lindenwood has its own post office,
the College being a station, and this is
one of the activities in the basement of
Roemer Hall. There are 23 classrooms
in the building, four lecture rooms with

(Continued on Page §8)
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Dmnormnr or Republican?

There are likely to be lively times on
the campus in politics up to Election Day.
The Republican National Committee cast
wistful eyes toward Lindenwood as early
as May 10, when letters were written
from the College Bureau, secking to en-
roll students in the “organization.” Com-
mencement came soon after, and nothing
was accomplished, but the matter will be
broached again. Nor will Democratic
committees be idle, for Lindenwood con-
tains many Southern girls, and it has
sometimes been thought in the past that
Democrats were the more numerous.
Students of Lindenwood, when it was a
junior college, used to be too young to
handle the ballot, even had the sex been
permitted to do so, but a census of the
last senior class showed an average age
of a fraction over 21. Several of the
girls had even reached the tremendous
age of 23. So the zest of a national cam-
paign will be felt in the air, and students
promise to go just as far as the powers
will permit, in the way of bonfires,
speeches and parades.

Homes of Their Own

Except for the house-mothers, few if
any of the college instructors will lodge
in the dormitories in 1924-25. This is in
pursuance of a purpose which has been
growing for several years—to give teach-
ers homes of their own. Such an ar-
rangement is generally preferred by the
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faculty, as a different atmosphere re-
freshes them after their work in the
classroom. Popular teachers, when near
at hand, are apt to be overwhelmed with
visits from their loving satellites, but
under the new conditions, it will be quite
an event to be invited to a teacher’s
home, and far from staying too long,
visitors may politely follow the mode in
Edward FEverett Hale’s “Sybaris,” of
looking at their watches overy 11 min-
utes and making “an honest effort” to go.

Another Birthday Party
Precedent for Lindenwood’s ten-year
celebration of President and Mrs. Roem-
er’s incumbency was given in another 10-
year birthday party, a very big and cos-
mopolitan party, the celebration on Au-
gust 15 on the Isthmus of Panama, of
ten years’ existence of the Canal, which
has now become so great a factor in the
world’s commerce that it is difficult to
realize it has not always existed. Toll
receipts for the last year were more than
$24,000,000, in which the heaviest ton-
nage was Western Canadian wheat,
shipped through Vancouver. It will al-
ways be a calendar mark to remember,
that “the Newer Lindenwood” began in

the same year as the Panama Canal,

Ending Her Furlough
Miss Catherine Sutherland, who taught
music at Lindenwood several years ago,
and ~whose mother, Mrs. George W.
Sutherland (Olla Barnett), of 3815 Bo-
tanical avenue, [indenwood
alumna, is finishing her furlough in this
country, and will soon go back to China
to her missionary work. Miss Sutherland
spoke in ‘Markham Memorial Church on
August 31. She has spent much of the
year in special studies at Columbia Uni-
versity, and Waé at the Y. W, C. A. camp

at' Lake (;em‘\.t \’\’1: this summer.

HAR | SRl 1,.

was 4
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Dr. Knight's Widow Dies

Remembered at Lindenwood in the
Nineties

A generation ago, from 1893 to 18985,
Mrs, Anna M, Knight, who has recently
died at Omaha, Neb., was identified with
Iindenwood's advancement, both as a
personality whom the girls of that time
still bear in loving memory, and also
through the work of her husband, the
late Rev. William Sims Kinght, D. D.,
president of Lindenwood for the five
vears noted. Their daughters were well
known to Lindenwood, Miss Augusta
Knight having been head of the Art De-
partment while her father was president.
Miss Ella Knight was a student, grad-
uating from the literary department in
1895.

Dr. Knight succeeded Dr. Irwin as
president of Lindenwood, after an 18
years’ pastorate of the First Presbyterian
Church of Carthage, Mo., where he was
one of the founders of the Carthage Col-
legiate Institute. After his five-year
term of service at Lindenwood he went
back to Carthage, this time to be presi-
dent of the Collegiate Institue. He died
there in November, 1905. T'he remains
of Mrs. Knight were brought home fo
Carthage, and her funeral service was
held at the First Presbyterian Church of
Carthage, Monday afternoon, July 28,

FROM ONE CARTHAGE TO
ANOTHER

Mrs. Knight was formerly Miss Anna
Mack of Carthage, 111., where Dr. Knight
held his first pastorate for four vears,
from 1866 to 1870. They were married
in 1871, and by a coincidence in names
of cities, came four vears later to Car-
thage,. Mo., where her husband's  long
pastorate hegan in 1875, :

A son, |Mr. D. M. Knight of Park-
ville, Mo., and two daughters, Misses

Augusta and Ella Knight, who are teach-
ers in Omaha, Neb., survive her, as also
her brother and sister living in Carthage,
[, Mrs. Knight was about 71 years of
age, and was prominent in the Omaha
Women's Club, giving particular atten-
tion to citizenship and Americanization
work. She had made her home in Omaha
sincé 1905,

Rev. Dr. James D. McCaughtry, pas-
tor of the First Presbyterian Church of
Carthage, Mo., officiated in Carthage, at
the funeral, a previous service having
been held in Omaha, Saturday afternoon,
July 26. Mr. and Mrs, D. M. Knight and
their little son, of DParkville, Mo., and
Misses Augusta and Ella Knight of
Omaha, accompanied the body to Car-
thage. She was buried in Park Cemetery,
Carthage, beside the grave of her hus-
band.

Miss Brennan, Librarian
Miss Wintress Bren-
nan, of North of Ire-
land ancestry, is to be
the new librarian at
ILindenwood. She
comes from experi-
ence both in college
libraries and in city li-
braries. One of these
: posts was the Bailey
Branch at Gary, Ind, She has served in
the Kankakee (111.) Public Library, and
since 1921 has been General Assistant
and Order Assistant at the University of
Ilinois Library. Miss Brennan received
the degree B, A, in 1914 from the Uni-
versity of Illinois, and B. L. S. from the
same university in 1917, having attended
the Library School. She arrived at Lin-
denpvood August 19, and entered at once
upon the classification of the new works
which have arrived during the, summer
months. !
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Roemer Day

(Continued from Page 3)

raised floors, also laboratories for Bot-
any, Chemistry, Biology, and the differ-
ent branches of Physics. There is an Art
Department of several rooms and foyer,
and a fully equipped Domestic Science
Department, both as to housekeeping and
clothing. The building is fully provided
with instructors’ offices on the various
floors.

At about the same time, provision was
made for the remodeling of one of the
smaller buildings into “The Gables,” a
bungalow with artistic porches, for the
residence of President and Mrs. Roemer.

Last of the buildings is Irwin Hall,
which will be ready for 84 students when
school opens.

LINDENWOOID'S PURPOSES

Since President Roemer's accession
the college has expended $1,500,000 for
buildings and improvements, including
the new Irwin Hall. The campus has
been enlarged from 34 acres to 138 acres.
The educational plan has grown from
that of a secondary school to a college of
the first rank. Lindenwood is a member
of the Missouri College Union and of
the North Central Association, Depart-
ment of Higher Institutions of Learning,
and is accredited for four-year college
work. The number of students has quad-
rupled in the ten years.

“The real purpose of Lindenwood
College,” says President Roemer, “is the
education of young women for a life of
usefulness in the home, society and state.
In addition to the work done in the regu-
lar course in the liberal arts, with the
degree B. A., the girls are trained in
business, in household arts, they are pre-
pared to teach school or to enter jour-
nalism, in the courses looking to the de-
gree B. S§.”

TITLES AND DEGREES

“Who's Who" records various honors
that have been conferred upon President
Roemer. He has received the degree
LL. D. from Westminster College and
also from the Missouri Valley College;
and the degree D). D., from Westminster,
These followed his college and seminary
graduating degrees,, A. B. from the Uni-
versity of West Virginia, and B, D. at
the Western T'heological Seminary.

Dr. Roemer is listed in “Who's Who"
as a 32nd degree Mason, and a member
of the University and Missouri Athletic
Clubs, St. Louis, the Sunset Club, Chilli-
cothe, Ohio ; the National Historical So-
ciety, the American Academy of Po-
litical and Social Science, the State His-
torical Societies of both Virginia and
Missouri, and the Chambers of Com-
merce of St. Louis and of St. Charles.

Home From Des Moines
(Society Page, St. Louis Globe-Demo-
crat, August 3)

A luncheon in honor of President John
L. Roemer of Lindenwood College, was
given Monday by about thirty-five for-
mer Lindenwood students, at the Harris-
Emery tea room at Des Moines, Ia. These
hostesses, with Miss Helen Rutledge of
Early, Ia., presiding, were representative
of the recently organized Iowa Linden-
wood College Club, which has fifty-six
members. Dr. Roemer was guest at the
home of Miss Dorothy Hall and her par-
ents in Des Moines. Others present from
the administrative staff of the college
were Mr. Guy C. Motley and Mr, C. A.
Blocher. Miss Rebecca Louise Clark of

-Adel, Ta., secretary of the club, was one

of those taking a leading part in the en-
tertainment, which will inaugurate plans
for Lindenwood girls in Towa to have a
part in the Mary Easton Sibley memo-
rial scholarship.
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Civil Service in House-
Mothers

Miss Edna Hough, who has been head
of Sibley Hall, which is the oldest dormi-
tory, is now to be taken to the newest
dormitory, Irwin Hall. With her love
for lowers, and her skill in making every
little bud and blossom thrive, Miss
Hough may be envisioned in an environ-
ment of roses, jonquils and fragrant
hyacinths which will spring forth from
bare soil at her bidding next season,
around the porches of Irwin Hall. Stu-
dents agree that no one is better fitted to
preside over this new dormitory de luxe.

A new house-moth-
er has been requisi-
tioned for Sibley, in
Mrs. Mary B. Weng-
er uf L‘:lil'n, T11. Mrs.
Wenger was educated
at the University of
West Virginia, at
Morgantown, and
more recently has
been house-mother there for the Alpha
chapter of Pi Beta PPhi. Coming thus
from a fraternity house, where much that
is romantic may happen, the new house-
mother will doubtless be well prepared
for the traditional, eerie Hallow-E'en at
Sibley Hall, when Mrs, Sibley, in cos-
tume of 100 vears agone, is supposed to
walk to the dining room at midnight, car-
rying a candle.

* * *

Cards have been received announcing
the advent of Hugh McElroy Chalfant,
July 13, the son of Mr. and Mrs. Frank
Chalfant of 1221 Ford street, Boise,
Idaho. Mr. Chalfant is a brother of
Helen Moore Chalfant, A. A. "19 (Mrs.
Ezra B. Hinshaw), and their father, Rev.
Charles 1.. Chalfant, D. D., of Pittsburg,
has often given talks at Lindenwood.

Lindenwood’s First Portia
Governor Makes Miss Lois Dale Judge

Winning her appointment in the face
of two other strong aspirants, Miss Lois
Dale, 1907-09, has been appointed Coun-
ty and Probate Judge at her home in
Texarkana, Tex., where she has been
practicing law for five or six years. She
was a brilliant and popular girl at Lin-
denwood, a member of the junior college
sorority, Sigma Tota Chi, and a graduate
from the Seminary Department in 1909.
She went on to Tulane University, New
Orrleans, completing the law course there,
with the degree LL. B. She has occasion-
ally visited Lindenwood, and as “Judge
Dale” she will be doubly welcome in the
future.

The Dallas (T'ex.) News, in a dispatch
from Texarkana, has this to say about
Miss Dale's appointment, under date July
20

Miller County was given the dis-
tinction of having the first woman

County and Probate Judge in Arkan-

sas, when Gov. McRae Monday ap-

pomted Miss Lois Dale of Texarkana
as the successor of Judge C. W. Nolan,
who died about a week ago.

Miss Dale is a lawyer and has been

a member of the I'exarkana bar for

four or five years, and for the last two

vears has been serving as county pro-

bation officer. She is regarded as a

very brilliant young woman and is an

excellent orator.

Gov. McRae appointed her over two
male applicants, both of whom had held
the office heretofore and whose friends
made strenuous efforts in their behalf.

* % %

Amnouncement comes from Mr. and
Mrs. R. D. Mowry (Lillian Stewart,
graduate, Seminary Department, 1914),
telling of the coming of a little daughter,
Marion Louise, at their home at Gallatin,
Mo., May 25,
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~ Weddings

Announcement cards have been Tre-
ceived from Mrs: Arthur H. Meyer of
Kansas City, announcing the mariiage of
her grand-daughter, Miss Marjorié:Leigh
Wyman, 1922-23, to Mr. William Henry
Murphy of St. Louis, on Thursday, July
10, at Kansas City. They are to'be at
home after August 1, at 3 Princeton ave-
nue, St. Louis. Society columns of the
newspapers in Kansas City and St. Louis
featured this wedding, and in the Post-
Dispatch, the  formal an-
nouncement, was this paragraph: “They
spent their honeymoon at the country
home of the bridegroom’s parents, Mr.
and Mrs. J. F. Murphy, “Marydale,”
Kingsville, Mo. The bride, who was edu-
cated at Lindenwood, is well known in
St. Louis. Mr, and Mrs. J. F. Murphy
recently returned from Honolulu.”

following

Mr. and Mrs, Murray Ellis Buck of
Monmouth, TII.,, have announced the mar-
riage of their daughter, Miss Mildred
Buck, 1920-21, to Mr. Alden Williams
Coffman, Friday evening, July 18, at the
home of her parents in Monmouth.

Miss Virginia Shull, 1922-23, has re-
cently been married to Mr. A, R. Wal-
ter, and will reside at 1313 Nebraska
Avenue, Peoria, 111

Mrs. R. H. H. Hampton has sent cards
announcing the marriage of her daugh-
ter, Miss Ruth Hampton, to Dr. F. H.
Washburn, Tuesday, July 29, at the
Hampton residence in Carterville, Tl
The bride was a graduate of the Home
Economics Department in 1915, and a
member of the sorority, Eta Upsilon
Gamma. After leaving Lindenwood, she
taught in :the grade schools, spent one

vear as a student at the University of
Illinois, and three summer terms at the
Southern Illinois Normal School,

In the society columns of the Oklaho-
ma News appears an account of the wed-
ding, Monday, July 21, of Miss Ruth
Bass, 1921-22, and Mr. Fabian Luder.
The ceremony occurred at Yukon, Okla.,
at the home of the bride’s parents, Mr.
and Mrs, George Bass, with her sister,
Miss Eunice Bass, as her maid of honor,
the other bridesmaids being Misses Jane
Hull of Zanesville, Ohio, and Florence
Sanger of Drumright, Okla. Mr. and
Mrs. Luder will reside in Okeene, Okla.,
where the bridegroom is associated with
his father in business.

Announcement is sent of the marriage
in San Bernardino, Cal.,, of Miss Orlo
Theola Lambert, 1921-23, daughter of
Mr. and Mrs. H. M. Lambert of Esther-
ville, Ia., to Mr. Charles Everett Ridley,
on June 20. Their future home will be
at 1231 West 50th Street, Los Angeles,
Cal. e e

After Fifty Years

A few girls of 1871-72 were posted
by the July Bulletin for identification.
Miss Pem Hibler, a student of that year,
has been traced through the kindness of
her cousin, Mrs. J. B. Brouster (Emma
McElhinney, graduate of '15), of Creve
Coeur. Long ago Miss Hibler became
Mrs. Jessie Hogg. After living for years
in St. Louis County, she and her family
removed to Springhield, Mo., where she
lives now, with her four children, from
which city it is hoped that she may be
persuaded to return for the centennial
jubilee of Lindenwood in 1927, or at any
earlier time, if she be so disposed.
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Mrs. Berger's Bereavement
Death of Former St. Louis Banker

Mr. William E. Berger, a retired bank-
er, whose wife (Viola Richards) has
kept up her associations with Linden-
wood for more than 30 vears, died Au-
gust 1, at the age of 62, at his home in
L.os Angeles,, Cal., after an illness of
two and one-half vears, following a
stroke of apoplexy. Mr. Berger's original
and important work in the development
of the business of banking is told in the
current number of the Argonaut, a maga-
zine published in San Francisco and Los
Angeles, as follows, under the caption,

“Father of Up-Town Banking":

“In these days of up-town banks, it is
interesting to note the passing away, in
L.os Angeles, of one who was responsible
for the beginning of the movement in St.
Loouis, Mo., more than 10 vears ago. Wil-
liam E. Berger,
dence, 4216 Beverly place, Los Angeles,
August 1, was a native of Lebanon, 11,
where he was born 62 years ago. His
father, a physician of that city, was one
of the Carl Schurz liberal Germans, who
crossed the Atlantic in the middle of the
century, and made such good records in
this country in the succeeding 20 years,

“In 1891, finding himself free to act,
owing to the reconstruction of the down-
town St. Louis bank where he had re-
ceived his training, William E. Berger re-
solved to start a bank more than twenty
blocks from the center, on Jefferson Ave-
nue of that city, which he named the Jef-
féerson Bank. To the new institution he
devoted all his energies and made it a
success, but in 1908 he broke down un-
der the strain and went to Southern Cali-
fornia.

“His widow is a sister of Mrs, James
Main Dixon, whose husband, Prof. Dix-
on, and the ex-banker enjoyed golf and
lawn bowling together for many years.

wha died at his resi-

In the winter of 1921-22, Mr. Berger
suffered a stroke of apoplexy, which con-
fined him to his couch until his death.

“He was a kindly, genial man, and
bore his affliction patiently.

“His only brother, Albert L. Berger,
is a well-known lawyer in Kansas City."”
ONE OF THREE SISTERS

Mrs. Berger was the first president of
the Los Angeles Lindenwood College
Club, continuing in that office for several
vears. Her schooling at Lindenwood
continued through five or six years, in
the '80s. She was the youngest of three
sisters, all of whom were wards of Dr.
Marshall, and all attended Lindenwood.
The other two were graduates.

Miss Clara Bell Richards, graduate of
the Literary Department in 1882, now
Mrs. James Main Dixon, is probably the
only Lindenwood alumna who has been
presented at the Imperial Court of Japan.
She was eight years a resident of Japan,
and taught in the Imperial Conservatory
of Music at Tokio. Her husband, Prof.
Dixon, taught for a time at Lindenwood.
He is now connected with the Um\erélt\
of Southern California.

The other sister, Miss Ida Bell I\u:h-
ards, Literary Department graduate of
1885, is the wife of Mr. Eliphalet N.
Wright, a brother of the widely known
native Indian evangelist, the late Rev.
Frank Wright of St. Louis, Their home
is in Olney, Okla.

Mr. Berger leaves a family consisting
of his wife and a son, Elmer Berger.

Died in Germany

Announcement has reached the college
of the death at Ratzeburg, Germany, on
July 10, of Mr. Carl Rakenius, husband
of Alma Goebel, who attended Linden-
wood about 40 years ago. Mrs. Raken-
ius visited the college last fall, and gdve
a chapel address, telling of conditions in
Germany, L
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Kansas City Club Greets
New Alumnae
Election of Officers for 1924-25

Services of the latest graduates have
at once been requisitioned by the Kan-
sas City Club, as is seen in the election
of Miss Adaline Ayers, B. 8, 24, to be
Corresponding Secretary, It is Miss
Ayers who sends the following report of
the Club:

“The girls who attended lindenwood
in the last yvear were the guests of the
Kansas City Club at its meeting in June.
Miss Helen Kready of Sikeston, Mo,
who was visiting Miss Mary Louise
Blocher, also was present. Mrs. Overall
and Miss Anthony, who were guests of
the College during Commencement, gave
very interesting reports of their visit.

“Mrs. Overall, who was elected Presi-
dent of the Inter-Club Federation, gave a
complete report of the formation of the
Federation and its activities for the vear.
Miss Anthony then made a most forceful
talk, urging the Club to raise its quota
for the year 1924-25.

“T'he annual election of officers re-
sulted in the choice of the following :

Miss Lenore Anthony, President.

Mrs. E. B, Gray (Martha Miller),
Vice-President.

Mrs. J. S. Neely (Alice Van Guild-
er), Recording Secretary.

Miss Adaline Ayers, Corresponding
Secretary.

Mrs. J. H. Morris, Treasurer.

Mrs. J. V. Metzger (Gladys Myers),

Auditor.”
* %k %

Changed Addresses

Mrs. J. M. Crumpton (Lucy Simp-
son), in sending her new address, 1031
West Morton street, Denison, ‘l'ex.,
adds: “I enjoy the Bulletin very much.”

Mrs. A. R. Mosley's new address is
5713 Worth street, Dallas, Tex.,

COLLEGE

Chicago Club Guests

(Sent by Mrs. Ann Whyte Gentry, Cor-
responding Secretary)

The July meeting of the Chicago Lin-
denwood Club was at the home of Mrs,
Irene B. Zaring, who was assisted by
Mrs, Charles Peterson and Mrs. 1. E.
Crandall.

We were pleased to have with us Miss
Alice Linnemann who, after luncheon,
spoke, as always, enthusiastically of Lin-
denwood.

Mr. and Mrs. William ]J. Malcolmson,
who have been in London, England, two
vears, are touring continental Europe
with Mrs, Malcolmson's parents, Dr. and
Mrs. Baity and the Misses Baity of Kan-
sas City.

Scholarships Accepted

Up to date seventeen of the girls re-
ceiving  scholarships at the last com-
mencement have accepted them and will
continue their studies at Lindenwood.
These honor students so far registered
who represent eight different States, are
as follows:

Seniors, Gertrude Bird, Davenport,
la.; Roberta Moehlenkamp, St. Charles,
Mo.; Elizabeth Arveson, Merrill, Wis. ;
Margaret Boss, Jackson, Mo.; Ann Po-
drasky, lLake Charles, La., and Sara
Shomberg, Altoona, Pa.

Juniors, Grace Larson, Paxton, Il ;
Ruth Shapiro and Eunice Willbrand,
both of St. Charles; and Ada Heming-
way, Clinton, Ia.

Sophomores, Helen Kready, Sikeston,
Mo.; Margaret Bloebaum, Paris, Tex.;
Virginia Symns, Nevada, Mo.; Nadine
Swope, Tulsa, Okla.; Adelaide Peabody,
Fullerton, la., and Marjorie Groves,
Corder, Mo.

I‘reshmen, Frances Stumberg (whose
scholarship was in the sub-freshman de-
partment ).



